
Historic Resources Commission 
Agenda | October 12, 2022 | 6 pm 
Special Meeting 

мΦ Call to order, roll call, and confirmation of a quorum
ŀΦ Historic Resources Commission Charge:  The Historic Resources Commission is charged with 

promoting, enhancing, and preserving the character of the historic district as well as 
landmarks, including the Courthouse Square Historic District.

нΦ Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence

оΦ Minutes review and approval
ŀΦ Regular meeting:  September 6, 2022
b. Regular Meeting: October 4, 2022

пΦ Old Business 

ŀΦ 2022/2023 Façade Grant applications | scoring matrix | project proposal worksheet
ƛΦ Viviana Maltby | Minor COA - 112 W Elm Street
ƛƛΦ Page Stokes and Junior Snyder | Minor/Major COA2209 - 16 NE Court Square
ƛƛƛΦ Carson Talley | Major COA2210 - 22 SW Court Square
ƛǾΦ Cheryl Perry | Minor COA2211 - 130 N Main Street
ǾΦ Thomas Boney | Minor/Major COA2212 - 114 West Elm Street
ǾƛΦ Katherine Baird | Major COA2213 - 113 N Main Street

рΦ New Business 
a. Certificate of AppropriatenessκIƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ [ŀƴŘƳŀǊƪ Applications

ƛΦ COA2215 - Applicant Court Square Development, is requesting to install a new 
staircase at the property located at 111 N Main Street.

ƛƛΦ COA2216 – Applicant Court Square Development, is requesting installing a new 
canopy and patio at the property located at 113 N Main Street.

ƛƛƛΦ COA221т - Applicant Court Square Development, is requesting to make parking lot 
improvements at the property located at 101 E Harden Street.

ƛǾΦ I[ннлм π !ǇǇƭƛŎŀƴǘ /ƻǳǊǘ ǎǉǳŀǊŜ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘΣ ƛǎ ǊŜǉǳŜǎǘƛƴƎ ŘŜǎƛƎƴŀǘƛƻƴ ŦƻǊ ŀ 
IƛǎǘƻǊƛŎŀƭ [ŀƴŘƳŀǊƪ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǘȅ ƭƻŎŀǘŜŘ ŀǘ млн { aŀƛƴ {ǘǊŜŜǘΦ

сΦ Updates
ŀΦ Council
ōΦ Staff

тΦ Adjournment

https://www.cityofgraham.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Facade-Grant-Scoring-Matrix.pdf
https://www.cityofgraham.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/2021_HRC-Grant-Propsal-of-Projects.pdf


Minutes of the September 6, 2022 Historic Resource Commission 

The meeting was called to order by Jeanette Beaudry at 6:15 p.m. 

The following Commissioners were present:  Karen Chin, Zipporah Clark Baldwin, Jeanette Beaudry, 
Matthew Haley Absent were Jerome Bias, Lisa Kyle and Anthony Brooks.  

Staff:  Planner Cameron West, Debbie Jolly Zoning/Inspections Technician and Jenni Bost Zoning 
Enforcement Officer. 

Jeanette Beaudry led the Pledge of Allegiance, and a moment of silence. 

Approval of the June 7, 2022 minutes Karen Chin made a motion to approve as presented.  Zipporah 
Clark Baldwin put forth the second.  All voted Aye.  

Old Business 
a. Elect a Chair and Vice Chair

 Karen Chin made a motion to nominate Zipporah Clark Baldwin for Chair.  Seconded by Jeanette 
Beaudry.  All voted Aye. Karen Chin made a motion to nominate Jeanette Beaudry for Vice Chair. 
Seconded by Matthew Haley. All voted Aye.  

New Business 

a. Certificate of Appropriateness Applications

i. COA2209 - Applicant Page Stokes and Junior Snyder, is requesting to installing signage
at the property located at 16 NE Court Square. Cameron presented the staff report to the
commission.  Zipporah Clark Baldwin opened the public hearing.  Page Stokes spoke about
his new business. Chuck Talley, 808 Sideview St.  spoke for approval on the sign. Jennifer
Talley also spoke for approval of the sign.  Matthew Haley made a motion close the public
hearing and Jeanette Beaudry made the second motion.  Karen Chin made a motion to
Approve the application for COA2209 for the property located at 16 NE Court Square as
submitted because it does meet the design standards outline in section CS 12 of the court
house square historical manual. Matthew Haley made the second motion and all voted Aye.

ii. COA2210 – Applicant Carson Talley, is requesting installing signage at the property
located at 22 SW Court Square. Chuck Talley spoke on behalf of Carson Talley, Chuck
gave several details about the sign.  Karen Chin said, I find that if produced in accordance
with the plans submitted, the proposed addition will be compatible with the character of
the mid-nineteenth century courthouse square Historic District.  Karen Chin made a motion
to Approve the application for COA2210 for the property located at 22 SW Court Square as
submitted because it does meet the design standards outline in 22 of the handbook, CS 12.
Matthew Haley made the second motion. All voted Aye.

iii. COA2212 – Applicant Thomas Boney, is requesting to install new mural on existing
painted brick facade at the property located at 114 W Elm Street.  Chair Clark-Baldwin
opened the public hearing, Karen Chin made the second. All voted Aye.   Cameron
presented the staff report.  Thomas Boney of 114 W Elm St presented the details of the
project.  Chair Clark-Baldwin ask for a motion to close the public hearing. Vice chair Jeanette



 
Beaudry made the first motion; Karen Chin made the second motion. All voted aye.  Jeanette           
Beaudry said I have thoroughly researched the application and all other documents related to 
COA2212 and I am familiar with the property in question and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans submitted, the proposed addition will be Compatible with the 
character of the mid-nineteenth century Courthouse Square Historic District. Jeanette Beaudry 
made a motion to approve the application for COA2212 for the property located at 114 W Elm 
Street with the condition that the name of the business is removed from the mural, then the 
project will meet the standards set out in the Historic Resources Design Guidelines Standards 
and shall be permitted.  

                 
                iv. COA2213 - Applicant Katherine Baird, is requesting installing signage at the property 
                      located at 113 N Main Street.  Cameron presented the staff report.  Jennifer Talley came 
                      forward to speak on behalf of the sign.  Chuck Talley also came forward to speak on  
                      behalf of the sign.  Chair Clark-Baldwin made the first motion: she has thoroughly re- 
                      searched the application and all other documents related to COA2213 and I am familiar with  
                      the property in question….and I find that if produced in accordance with the plans  
                      submitted, the proposed addition will be Compatible with the character of the mid- 
                      nineteenth century Courthouse Square Historic District. I make a motion to approve the  
                      application for COA2213 for the property located at 113 N Main Street as submitted  
                      because it does meet the design standards outline and they were met with the dimensions 
                      of the sign that has been submitted. It did meet the dimensions of the required  
                      criteria and I approve with no conditions. Matthew Haley made the second motion. And 
                      all voted Aye. 
 
     b. 2022/2023 Façade Grant applications | scoring matrix | project proposal worksheet 
                      
                Cameron gave updates on the façade grants. After a brief discussion about the amount of funds 
                 that would be available for the façade grants. Vice chair Beaudry made a motion to table this    
                 item. Karen Chin made the second motion. All vote Aye.  The commission asked Chair Clark- 
                 Baldwin to take this item to the next City Council Meeting and she agreed. 
 

i. Viviana Maltby | Minor COA - 112 W Elm Street 
 

ii. Page Stokes and Junior Snyder | Minor/Major COA2209 - 16 NE Court Square  
 

iii. Carson Talley | Major COA2210 - 22 SW Court Square 
 

iv. Cheryl Perry | Minor COA2211 - 130 N Main Street 
 

v. Thomas Boney | Minor/Major COA2212 - 114 West Elm Street 
 
   vi.          Katherine Baird | Major COA2213 - 113 N Main Street 

       
Staff updates: 
 
       
      b. City Council- Joey Parsons City Council liaison- No council updates 



8. Adjournment- Karen Chin made a motion to adjourn. Matthew Haley seconded.  All voted Aye.
Meeting adjourned – 8:17 p.m.

Minutes respectfully submitted, Debbie Jolly & Jenni Bost 



Minutes of the October 4, 2022 Historic Resource Commission 

The meeting was called to order by Zipporah Clark Baldwin at 6:08 p.m. 

The following Commissioners were present:  Karen Chin, Zipporah Clark Baldwin. 

 Jeanette Beaudry, Matthew Haley, Jerome Bias, Lisa Kyle and Anthony Brooks were absent. 

Staff:  Planner Cameron West, Debbie Jolly Zoning/Inspections Technician and Jenni Bost Zoning 
Enforcement Officer. 

There were not enough Commissioners present to have a quorum for a meeting. 

Karen Chin recommended that they have a special meeting on October 12, 2022 at 6pm, Zipporah Clark 
Baldwin agreed.  

 Joey Parsons City Council liaison, was also present. 

Minutes respectfully submitted by Jenni Bost 





















Cadet Grey

Available Widths

4630-0000 I 46" (117cm)

6030-0000 I 60" (n 52cm)

80030-0000 I 80" (203cm)















































Estimate
Date

8/17/2022

Estimate No.

387

THE ALAMANCE NEWS
114 W Elm St
Graham, NC  27253

E. P. Gates Construction & Realty, LLC

20 NE Court Square
Graham, NC  27253

Project

Total

Description Qty Rate Total

INSTALL MURAL ON PAINTED BRICK FACADE 10'6" 1 3,000.00 3,000.00T
Sales Tax 6.75% 202.50

$3,202.50















COA Location (address) Description of Work
Project Cost  

Lowest Quote

Potential 
Award @ 25% 
of the Allotted 

Amount*

Potential 
Award @ 50% 
of the Allotted 

Amount*

Potential 
Award @ 75% 
of the Allotted 

Amount*

Potential 
Award @100% 
of the Allotted 

Amount*

Total Grant 
Amount 

Awarded**

COA2208 112 W Elm Street     1. Replacement of awning $3,042.38 $380.30 $760.60 $1,140.89 $1,521.19 

COA2209 16 NE Court Square  
1. Replacement of awning

2. Signage
$8,273.13 $1,034.14 $2,068.28 $3,102.42 $4,136.57 

COA2210 22 SW Court Square          1. Signage $4,950 $618.75 $1,237.50 $1,856.25 $2,475.00 

COA2211 130 N Main Street     1. Replacement of Awning $2,626 $328.26 $656.51 $984.77 $1,313.03 

COA2212 114 W Elm Street
1. Install mural                                           

2. Replacement of Awning
$6,244.88 $780.61 $1,561.22 $2,341.83 $3,122.44 

COA2213 113 N Main Street 1. Signage $6,028.00 $753.50 $1,507.00 $2,260.50 $3,014.00 

Total Project 
Costs

Maximum 
Potential  

Award Amount

Total Funds 
Available for 

Awards

$31,164.44 $15,582.22 $15,582.22



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Cameron West, Planner

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

i. COA2215 – Applicant Court Square Development | 111 N Main Street

Proposal:  Applicant is requesting to install a new staircase and balcony on the back of the 
structure.

Staff Report:  An existing building is looking to provide balcony seating and extra emergency 
ingress/egress for the residential tenant in the building. 

Packet materials:  photos and proposed drawings of the additional structure on the building

Application Design Guidelines:   

A. Structural Systems

• Exterior Stairs
B. Additions to Existing Building

• Exterior Canopy on Second Floor













Motion Language 

Approve Deny Table 
I have thoroughly researched 
the application and all other 
documents related to COA2215 
and I am familiar with the 
property in question.  

Finding of Fact:  
…and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans 
submitted, the proposed 
addition will be Compatible 
with the character of the mid-
nineteenth century Courthouse 
Square Historic District.  

I make the motion to: 
…Approve the application for 
COA2115 for the property 
located at 111 N Main Street  as 
submitted because it does meet 
the design standards outline in 
(state the sections where the 
guidelines are met)  [or] 
Approve with conditions detail 
your conditions 

…If approved with conditions.. 
If the following changes are 
made to the proposal such as: 

(list all desired changes to the 
proposal and how they relate to 
the requirements in the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards) 

…then the project will meet the 
standards set out in the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards and shall be 
permitted. 

I have thoroughly researched 
the application and all other 
documents related to COA2215 
and I am familiar with the 
property in question.  

Finding of Fact:  
…and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans 
submitted, the proposed 
addition will be incompatible 
with the character of the mid-
nineteenth century Courthouse 
Square Historic District.  

I make the motion to: 
…deny the application for 
COA2215 for the property 
located at 111 N Main Street as 
submitted because it does not 
meet the Historic Resources 
Design Guidelines Standards 
outline in (state the sections 
where the guidelines 
are met).  Therefore, the 
proposed project to (……insert 
the project detail) is/are not 
compatible with the character 
of the district.   

I move to table COA2215 for 
111 N Main Street  in order for 
(…state your reason for tabling 
the requested proposal). The 
application will be acted upon 
within a reasonable time period 
not to exceed 180 days 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Cameron West, Planner

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

i. COA2216 – Applicant Court Square Development | 113 N Main Street

Proposal:  Applicant is requesting to install a new canopy and patio to the structure.

Staff Report:  An existing building is looking to provide additional space on the back of the 
building by adding in a canopy and patio area for customers. 

Packet materials:  photos and proposed drawings of the additional structure on the building

Application Design Guidelines:   

A. Additions to Existing Building
• Exterior Canopy and Patio Installation















Motion Language 

Approve Deny Table 
I have thoroughly researched 
the application and all other 
documents related to COA2216 
and I am familiar with the 
property in question.  

Finding of Fact:  
…and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans 
submitted, the proposed 
addition will be Compatible 
with the character of the mid-
nineteenth century Courthouse 
Square Historic District.  

I make the motion to: 
…Approve the application for 
COA2116 for the property 
located at 113 N Main Street  as 
submitted because it does meet 
the design standards outline in 
(state the sections where the 
guidelines are met)  [or] 
Approve with conditions detail 
your conditions 

…If approved with conditions.. 
If the following changes are 
made to the proposal such as: 

(list all desired changes to the 
proposal and how they relate to 
the requirements in the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards) 

…then the project will meet the 
standards set out in the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards and shall be 
permitted. 

I have thoroughly researched 
the application and all other 
documents related to COA2216 
and I am familiar with the 
property in question.  

Finding of Fact:  
…and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans 
submitted, the proposed 
addition will be incompatible 
with the character of the mid-
nineteenth century Courthouse 
Square Historic District.  

I make the motion to: 
…deny the application for 
COA2216 for the property 
located at 113 N Main Street as 
submitted because it does not 
meet the Historic Resources 
Design Guidelines Standards 
outline in (state the sections 
where the guidelines 
are met).  Therefore, the 
proposed project to (……insert 
the project detail) is/are not 
compatible with the character 
of the district.   

I move to table COA2216 for 
113 N Main Street  in order for 
(…state your reason for tabling 
the requested proposal). The 
application will be acted upon 
within a reasonable time period 
not to exceed 180 days 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Cameron West, Planner

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

i. COA2217 – Applicant Court Square Development | 101 E Harden Street

Proposal:  Applicant is requesting to make parking lot improvements at the property 
located at 101 E Harden Street.

Staff Report:  A property is looking to install parking lot improvements in the form of 
installing natural area around existing sign structure, install retro gas pump island with 
lighting, install sail canopy shades in patio area, install ornamental cherry tree, install 
natural are along property line, install rock wall, and install natural area and curbing to 
enhance the look of the open area at the location.

Packet materials:  photos and proposed drawings of the additional improvements to the 
parking lot area.

Application Design Guidelines:   

A. Landscape Features
• Landscaping and trees
• Parking Areas
• Lighting



















 











Motion Language 

Approve Deny Table 
I have thoroughly researched 
the application and all other 
documents related to COA2217 
and I am familiar with the 
property in question.  

Finding of Fact:  
…and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans 
submitted, the proposed 
addition will be Compatible 
with the character of the mid-
nineteenth century Courthouse 
Square Historic District.  

I make the motion to: 
…Approve the application for 
COA2117 for the property 
located at 101 E Harden Street  
as submitted because it does 
meet the design standards 
outline in (state the sections 
where the guidelines are met)  
[or] Approve with conditions 
detail your conditions 

…If approved with conditions.. 
If the following changes are 
made to the proposal such as: 

(list all desired changes to the 
proposal and how they relate to 
the requirements in the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards) 

…then the project will meet the 
standards set out in the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards and shall be 
permitted. 

I have thoroughly researched 
the application and all other 
documents related to COA2217 
and I am familiar with the 
property in question.  

Finding of Fact:  
…and I find that if produced in 
accordance with the plans 
submitted, the proposed 
addition will be incompatible 
with the character of the mid-
nineteenth century Courthouse 
Square Historic District.  

I make the motion to: 
…deny the application for 
COA2217 for the property 
located at 101 E Harden Street  
as submitted because it does 
not meet the Historic 
Resources Design Guidelines 
Standards outline in (state the 
sections where the guidelines 
are met).  Therefore, the 
proposed project to (……insert 
the project detail) is/are not 
compatible with the character 
of the district.   

I move to table COA2217 for 
101 E Harden Street   in order 
for (…state your reason for 
tabling the requested 
proposal). The application will 
be acted upon within a 
reasonable time period not to 
exceed 180 days 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Cameron West, Planner

Historic Landmark Designation Application 

i. Applicant Court Square Development | 102 S Main Street

Proposal:  Applicant is requesting to identify the property located at 102 S Main Street as a 
Historic Landmark.

Staff Report:  An existing building is looking to acquire designation as a historical landmark 
inside the City of Graham Historical District.

Packet materials:  Application and description of site's significance.





Historic Significance of W.J. Nicks Store Building 

102 S. Main Street ca. 1851 Two-story brick building, laid up in common bond, built for Hannah and 

McLean Trading Company ca. 1851. The oversized bricks were reportedly made on site, sun dried and 

that several bricks have finger impressions that still remain. The building features two-panel doors with 

simple molded frames and a porch which carries across the entire front (west) elevation supported by 

cast iron columns with decorative capitals. Originally a three-story building, the top floor was destroyed 

by Hurricane Hazel in 1954. It is worth noting that the third floor was not rebuilt until the year 2000. 

Sash is 6/6.  

When Hannah and McLean went out of business in 1857 the building was sold to James D. Bason for 

retail businesses. Then in 1892 the property was again sold to W. J. Nicks. Nicks expanded the building 

and sealed off the second floor for use as his residence. The third floor was rented out for various 

meetings, etc. The basement was converted into a dining room for guests during court week and an 

annex was added to the rear that housed a kitchen on the first floor, an office on the second, and a 

bedroom on the third . Another two-story addition on the south side of the store was rented to Sing Lee 

for the town's first Chinese laundry. 

Nicks died in 1952, but the business continued to be operated by members of his family until 1964. By 

1914, the store of W. J. Nicks was already a landmark in Graham.  

National Register of Historic Places Inventory - Nomination Form March 10 1983 

The building entrances were intentionally built elevated above street level so that the livestock that 

frequented the square would not find their way in. This is one of the few pre-Civil War antebellum 

commercial buildings remaining in the state. 

Durward Stokes, Action & Auction 


	1. Call to order, roll call, and confirmation of a quorum
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	2022-2023_HRC Grant Funded Projects.pdf
	HRC Award Proposal

	2022-2023_HRC Grant Funded Projects.pdf
	HRC Award Proposal




